CRIME STORIES

" Transcript of interview with
“'““““ﬁiﬁﬁ;" Heath Stocks, who murdered
his wm"mmﬁ and sister.

(TONE; brief comments of crew; NOTE: Backgound noises & voices throughout)

INTERVIEWER: Let's just start. What- Tell me the status of- of your case at this s point. | know that

you're trying to get an f»’aprmmfmtiﬁmmw in certain areas. Could you explain that to me?
STOCKS: She could probably batter
INTERVIEWER: Well, ok, (LAUGHS) Fine.
STOOKS: So, | mean, she filed i, s0..
NTERWIEWER: Ol Alright.
STOCKS: s a...
INTERVIEWER: You have- Your grandmother comes every Wednesday, right’?
STOCKS: Yes, ma'am.

INTERVIEWER: s that something that- that you really look forward to, in terms of linking up with
your family.

STOCKS: We've. | mean, we've been able to work out a lotta problems that... They didn't know
what was wrong before. | mean, it's helped a lol, B;ha—»m comin' down here: that they didn't turm
against me, When they didn't know what was goirt on, they stood by me, even though thay didr't

knowe, And then when it finally did come to light, they were still supportive. And- or even maore so. ¥

think they- My grandmother's always said, ya know, that she felt that somethin® was wrong in the
first place, but... Ya know, [ wasn't sayin' ang.th ng.

INTERVIEWER: You never said anything all that time, right{7)7?

STOCKS: Well, | told a couple's select people, but... Nothin' was ever said, nothin' was ever done

ahout it, 30 itwas like it did.n't matter.

IMNTERY] 5”»”\«!‘3’:& Before we talk about what happened the day of the murders, let's- lel's ‘ust go

back ok? When you were a kid, how impertant was scouting for you? | mean, was that a big thing

for you m join?

STOCKS: At first, it was fun, you know, all my friends that | had at school were into the Cub
Soout ,mw thiat w\f)i'"{-?:"i thing. Later on, it was a little hard. I fried to guit.

INTERVIEWER: You did,
STOCKS: More than once.
INTERWIEWWER: Wihy?

STOCKS: Obvious reasons. Ya know, but my parents wanted o get Eagle Scout, and everybody
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wanted me to get Eagle Scout, follow through with it. Ya knaw, achieve a goal that people would
recognize as so'methin' to- that took a ot of work, But... So they told me to finish up.

INTERVIEWER: They wanted you to finish up. Your parents trusted Jack Walls, didn't they?
STOCKS: Everybody's parents did.

INTERVIEWER: What was the attraction to dra- to Jack at first for you? | mean, what did he give
STOCKS: Mm... The only thing(?) for most'a the guys, ya know, we were young guys. Just startin
to get interested in girls; a lot of us don't have girffriends - | didn't, for sure, at the time. Adeohol.
'Course, we were young boys. Dirty pictures were always, ya know( 7y, & good way o get
everybody's attention. 'd say probably the biggest thing, though, was the- the family problems at
home(?). Me and | dad havin' problems.

WOMAN: You're- you're at the front of a penitentiary, with {inaudible; Interviewar: | know) inmates.
INTERWVIEWY'ER: | know,

WOMAN: There's nothin' | can do, I'm sormy.

INTERWVIEWER: Ok

STOCKS: Especially since one escaped here recently.

INTERVIEWER: Yeah. Ok Canwe pick it up about- You said you would-your dad would come
hame...

STOCKS: He was... | guess my dad had a lotta anger inside of him. Dad always wanted us 1o be
the: best of everything. So... When it wasn't the best... he tried to give me that little exira push. Just
little things. Mo lyin', no cheatin', no stealin’”. That was always a biggle.

INTERVIEWER: Mm-hm. And what was the punishment, if- if he- if you were caught?

STOCKS: Ya got whoopad. With whatever he chose to whoop me with, Extension{?) cord,
whatever.

INTERVIEWER: So from that, did you- did you form your relationship with Jack because he was
kind to vou and he would listen to you? Tell me what made you alrift toward Fim.

STOCKS: He was- | mean, now that | can look back and | can look at all the- some'a the other
bays, too, {Interviewer: Mm-hm) & lot of ‘'em had some'a the same problems at home. Abusive

father, or a very- a father that had a lotta problems with anger. They didn't feel loved, accepted at
home.

INTERVIEWER: So he went for the vulinaerable kids.

STOCKS: (CLEARS THROAT) Right. He... Itwas... He made us feel cornfortable, like & friend, at
firest. The aleokal kind of loosed everybody's tongues. We talked about girls;, we talked about life;
talked about problems at home. Everything. So he knew about everything that was goin’ on at
home. All the parents trusted Jack. So if they were havin' problems with their children, they WL
talk to Jack. And Jack would talk to us. At times. Especially me. And | know that he talked to my
parents a lot. 'Specially later on, And... And | didr't know it at the time, but he was tedlin' me one
thing, tellin' them another. Pushin' us farther apart, so I'd draw closer to Fim.
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INTERVIEWER: So in a way, he was bringing you under (Stocks: His wing) his tatal(?y control.
STOCKS: There was a time when | called him Father,

INTERWIEWER: Sony, | didn't hear you.

STOCKS: There was a time when | called him my father.

INTERVIEWER: You called him Dad.

STOCKS: Mm. He called me son.

INTERVIEWER: And you felt that close to him.

STOCKS: Mm. Stupid, now that | look back at it. But. . After the years. it was all | had. | didn't
knew anything else to believe in.

INTERYIEWER: When was the first time he... he approached you sexually?

STOCKS Mm. Damascus, where we went to get all our merit badges. That's a big place up there.
People from all aver the state go up there and earn merit hadges. We'd besn drinkin'. And
everybody kind of left, and it's just me and him there. Do | have to really get into details of what-
STOCKS Well, | might as well, {inaudible)

INTERVIEWER: {(over Stocks) You can tell me what you want.

STOCHS: i's...

INTERVIEWER: Did you think that something was up? Did you have a feeling?

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) No. Not really. We'd all been drinkin'. Everybody was havin' a good
time. And everybody (PHONE RINGS) kinda left. Jack and 1 were left there alone on a blanket.
(BACKGROLTND NOISE) ... He performed oral sex on me, and then forced me to have oral sex
o him. 1was worried about it | didr't know, really, what to say. But- Then the guys come back,
Welcomne to the group.

INTERVIEWER: If yvou don't want {0,

INTERVIEWER: And they had all been a part of it

STOCKS: Mm-hm. Everyoneg of'em.

INTERVIEWER: Did you say to him... Were you scared? Did you say- Did he tell you, " dan't want
you to talk to anybody about this?" What did- Did you have any conversation about it?

STOCKS: I've heard some'a the boys discuss bein' threatened and things like that.
(BACKGROUND NCOISE) | think if anything, it was fear of what people wauld think of me if | said

anything about it. Ya know. | mean, that was ane'a the biggest things later on. How- | didn't want
people sayin” | was a homosexual. For lettin® it go on for so long. That bothered me.

INTERVIEWER: Did it also mean that you were with the in group? Did it-

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) A special elite group. His choice. His pick,
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INTERVIEWER: You were Jack's chosen?

STOCKS: Yeah, Jack was in charge of the order of the era(?) and the brotherhood. And... L don't

know anybody that was ever in those groups that wasn't part of the group. His group. If's like one'a

the fathers was retelling a story: he was talkin' about his son bein' tapped from behind, chosen for
the order of the era. And you know, they're thinkin' it was some big award, & privilege. And that
night, he was given alcohol and sexually abused by Jack. Brought into the group.
INTERVIEWER: So it was kind of your- an initiation.

STOCKS: Initiation.

INTERVIEWER: And then how long did this continue?

STOCKS: Al(?) camp outs... il | was a Eagle Scout, eighteen years old. | continued o go see
Jack at his house. Ya know, through high- | mean{?), through college, until T got locked up.

INTERVIEWER: And it continued, the sexual relationship?

STOCKS: It tapered off as | got.. into the college ordeal. | mean. he still.. He still tried to make
moves at ime. But it wasn't nothin' like- Jack's interest was in younger boys, o believe,

INTERVIEWER: He- but he did more, though. | mean, beyond the sex, and beyond the drinking.
He introduced you..

STOCKS: To = lotta things.

INTERVIEWER: Wasn't he training you, in terms of. ya know, guns. Wa- wasn't he training you o
il

STOCKS: Guns, explosives. A few of us ware.

INTERVIEWER: What was his reason? Why@ why did he tell you you needed to know that’?
STOCKS: 1 think at first, it was a means to keep everybody's attention. Here's military stuff, we're
gonna blow stuff up and shoot weapons, autornatic weapons, things of that nature. And... But as i

got older, it was a- It tumed intc @ protection. His litthe- his little hit squad. Anybody tried to hurt
Jack or, as he put it, take Jack away from us, we would defend him. With our lives, if necessary.

INTERVIEWER: And you were willing to do that,
STOCKS: Absolutely.

INTERVIEWER: Without guestion.

STOCKS: (inaudible) was... the things he- Ya know, I've- My family and I've talked about that a lot,

Tre- how he got control. Why did he retain so much control? | mean, when(?) | was in college, he
old me who to date, what to do on dates, what to do sexually with wornen. I'd come back and
report everything detail for detail.

IMTERVIEWER: Becausshemadeyoureparithem?Cryoujustthoughtyou-

STOCKS: It was. . What would you say? Conditioning. I'd been doin' it all along. Ya know, it was-
with ry family. Just talkin' to him about the prablems at home. He would tall me what to do. They
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would.talk to him, because | couldn't tallc to them. He'd tell 'em one thing, tell me another. We'd
get to fightin'. I'd go to- I'd spend more time with Jack, And so. . Itwas all psychological. It was..

INTERVIEWER: Did he try to get you to go after Cledis Hogan?
STOCKS: Me and other peoplg.
INTERVIEVWER: To kill him?

STOCKS: Inthe end. | mean, it developed into that. As rmore pressure got on Jack, the more he
hated Cladis and his son. You know, he cost him his- his Boy Seoute. But at the same time, even
though that happened, what?, in 937, 1 graduated from high school ines: he was still havin' camp
outs out there at his father's farm. | mean, it was- wasn't a real big secret. But at first, twas... I'm
rot gorna say- I'm not ganna say the guy's name, but it was a hundred and fifty dollars to the first
one that caught up with Doug and hurt him. Physically. Mot kill him, but hurt him. And he caught
over there(?). Not{?) me, but somebody else. After that, it was... We were- | know | was given a
list of his-all the license plates of all the cars that he drove, familiar hang outs, places of that
nature. Jack wanted us to catch up with him.

INTERWIEWER: I'm sorry?

STOCKS: Jack wanted us to catch up with him.

INTERVIEWER: So you would- you would stake hirm out?
STOCKS: Attimes.

INTERVIEWER: How'bout Cledis? Would you stake him out, too?

STOCKS When | was & senior in high school - | had a crash on this girl for years. And we had
started goin' out, ya know, and 'course, Jack was telin’ me, "Mo emotional attachments; just have
a sexual relationship. Don't get close, don't get invalved, Love just is goin'- its just
(BACKGROUND NOISE) gonna hurt you.” So about six months later, she breaks my heart, and
he's, "What'd | telt you? You wouldn't lister to me. What'd | tell you?" My emotions changed after
that. | didn't... Right before the incident thal(?) put me here, { got to where | really didn't even know

how to feel towards people. Empty inside. Nothin' but(?) hate and fear.
INTERVIEWER: Why do you think that there was that change?

STOCKS: Tryin' to- This thing that Jack called love, what he was doin’ to us, that he called love..
When | tried 1o find a real love, (BACKGROUND NOIBE} ya know(?) L was(?) in a girffriend or

somethina that nature, | always got crashed down. Ya know, it didn't last or somethin' of that
nature. And it was like, va know, it's not there. (Interviewer: So it was-) | gave up on myself

INTERVIEWER: You didn't wanna give that part'a yourself, because Jack iold you you'd get hurt?
STOCKS: And(?) | believed him. 1 didn't wanna trust people. And then | got to where | didn't trust
my family. It got to the point where... my emotions were so confused, | didn't know... If it wasn't
sex, | didn't really know- | mean, inmy mind, sex was Iove, And my family didn't fit into that
picture. So it was- | didn't know how to, 50 push 'em away. When | gat io college, the girl you're
talkin' about, Kelly... Don't use here name. Never mind.

INTERVIEWER: Mo, [wor't, Start again. It's ok

STOCKS When | met her... It was. . It started out as sexual. Then Jack told me things to do and |

http://www. courttv.com/onair/shows/crimestories/q_z_episodes/scoutmaster_stocks.html 7/6/02



CRIME STORIES Page 6 of 21

did "ern. Did things on dates. What to wear. All that good stuff. How to act at home with her
parents. Everything. Everything a father would do. He took the place'a my father. In my mind, in
my life. He treated me the way | wanted my father to treat me. Besides the abuse. The support.
Father/son talks. Me and my father'd sit in the same room for ten minutes, it was... (Interviewer:
Hm) nothin'. Ya know, And, ya know, | didn't know that Jack's over there fesdin' them this ling of
bull about me; and at the same time, he's tellin’ me stuff about them. 3o | go hame, thera's no
tellin' what he's done told tham. So we're just clashin' automatically.

STOCKS (Cont.): But with Kelly_.. With her, it started out as a sexual relationship. And | did fall in

lave, And Jack knew it. And hated it, despised it. She was pullin'- All this time he's worked to draw
me in: (Interviewer: Mm-hm) now here comes somebody along that's pullin’ me away. S0, There
was- We had had one of our first major disagreements over her.

INTERVIEWER: He was finding things wrong with her?
STOCKS: He wantad me to share.
INTERVIEWER: I'm sorey, say that again.

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) He wanted me to share. And it wasn't gonna happen. And then- And
I was talkin' about the feelings that | was havin', how good it felt, and blah, you know. He told me
to break up with her. {PHONE RINGS) Get rid of her. He said, "You remember what | told vou last
time. | won't(?) happen." | didn't listen. And he kept on. Then it got to the point, he said, "Brealk up
weith her or kill her." .. T broke up with her.

INTERVIEWER: What would'a happened, do you think, if you would've said, "No way.” Or couldn’t
you? And just said, Torget it." There's just- Wy- why is it breal up with her or kil her? Why did it
have to be an eitherfor situation? What if you went against him? What would've happened to You?

STOCKS: I'd probably turned up like Doug. Bein' stalked. Maybe. He considered me his finest
creation.

INTERVIEWEFR: You think you were??

STOCKS: Me says finest. ... | say a ma- ya know, not really a man. (Interviewer: Why do yoli-y But
a child in & man's bodly, A scared child in a man's body. {Interviewer. You were[?]) That didn't
know where to turr. Didn't know what to do. So | followed. | was weak, ..

INTERVIEWER: You krnow that(?) sexual abuse all along was- Did you know the sexual abuse
was wrong? Or did you think: This is the way it should be.

STOCKS: | didn't like it at all. But... For me, and | think some'a the other boys, it was, ya know: |
hate this, and | really don't like this; but | get this over here. | get treated the way lwanna be
treatad: 1 fesl loved, | feel needed, | feel proud of Ya know, I'm not gettin' talked down to. Gettin'
support. Fatherly support. .. (Interviewer: So-) It was

STOCKS (Cont.): all & mind game; he played with our emotions. Played on our emotions. What
was missing at horme, he found aut through our talks with him, and then he became those missin’

parts in our lives.

INTERVIEWER: Where was your mother in all this? Oh, {brief comment of crew)) we have (o siop.
Change tape. Ya ok?

STOCKS: | guess so.
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(END OF TAPE 6)

(TONE)

STOCKS: -a small child,

INTERVIEWER: Sorry?

STOCKS: As a child. Wery small. 'Course, my dance teacher.
INTERMIEWER: Huh?

STOCKS: My dance teacher. When | was thirteen.
INTERVIEWER: Yeah?

INTERVIEWER: And how old was your dance teacher?
STOCKS: Do you mind us stop@in' for a little while and 1 go get & drink?
INTERVIEWER: Yeah. (tape seems to stop & re-start)

VOICE: -of(?) Jack, too? Oh, réally.

INTERVIEWER(?): You should talk to her afterwards.

YWOICE: Ok, 't talk to her aftar,

STOCKS: Yeah. And that was my first sexual experience with a-
(brief commeants of crew)

STOCKSE: There's a ot of it.

INTERVIEWER: Ok, We ware talkin' about, again, the influence of Jack, but- and how he did

everything you- you wanted your dad to do. Where, in all this, was your mom® What did she think
of all this?

STOCKS: Me and my dad had problems before Jack. It only added- it added a lot to it. actually,
but... 1 think my mom tried ta be a mediator at times. Ya know, between me and my dad. But- Just
never worked.

INTERVIEWER: Did you ever tell your sister anything? She never knew until...

STOCKS: was real close o har(™).

INTERVIEWER: Right. Did she ever think that it was & litle strange that you were so close 1o
Jack?

STOCKS: T've bean told that she joined the youth suicide prevention, because she couldn't help

her brother, she'd help somebody else. We were close, me and my sister were. Real close. .

INTERVIEWER: But you- you ohviously couldnt tell her those things.
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STOCKS: No.

INTERVIEWER: What- It got to the point you were in college, he was telling you whil. to date,
what- what to do on dates, what to dress, when to break up. What was the point where you just
broke and went and told your parents? What happened? What did- what did he do that made you

oy that?

STOCKS: I'm not really... It was a real emotional time. Ya know, 'd just flunked outta college. | got
into same trouble with the law by drinking. Gettin'(?) DWW stuff My dad want through the roof
Drunk. All that good stuff. | don't know, | just think { inaudible) just broke down. (inaudible)... |
wanted- | warted it to end, but (PHONE RINGS) | didn't- | don't think 1 really knew how, And what
{7} was- had been goiln' on 8o long. And... 1 mean, he lived my life for me. That's what it was. And
| think in my mind, it was a guestion of whether [ could live without him. What would | do? I'd have
to make my own decisions. (inaudible} Ya know, pecple- people can't-1 don't think a Iotta people
understand. .. the things that this man did to us. I mean, it was- | mean, he'd been in the military. A
lot of it was, | thirk, based on military training: Build you up, break you dawn; build you up, break
ya down. | think he was constantly pushin’ to see how much control he had. I'm not gonna say
their names, but | know that two brothers and a sister had a sexual orgy. Itwas: Jack wants, Jack
gets. Jack agks for, there's no questions asked, do as you're told. ... Me, 1don't like

BTOCKS (Cont.): talkin' about it, and 've anly brought it up a few times. For me, itwas animals.

An animal- Mot animals, but an animal,

INTERVIEWER: Meaning ... 7

STOCKS: Meaning the(?) sick man made me do things with a dog. ... It's not easy to talk about. Al

all. 1 mean, | can look back and go: God, what | was- VWhat was | thinkin'? Why- why'd [ let myseif
be put through that kinda stuff.? And it was- And that all leads back to the same thing: Love. The
concept of love. (Interviewer: Hm) | didn't know what it was.

INTERYIEWER: Acceptance, 8lso.

STOCKS: And accept this- this make believe thing that he had us believin' in. And that was- that
was a nightmare. [t really was.

INTERVIEWER: So when did the nightmare get so bad- You- you funked outta school, Was it @
situation where you just came home and blurted it out?

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) It was- | dorm’t know, it was- You know, | told you that it got to where |
couldn't-1 didn't really know how to feel ltwas.. Jack's, one of his main things was to thrive on
hate and anger. Let that drive you, You krow{?), the-10

STOCKS (Cont): cry, that's weak; love, that's, you knaw, that's a weakness, it's just going to get
you hurt. Ya know. .. Peaple don't realize what it's like to want to reach out to people, and not
really know how. You know, you try and... twas...

INTERVIEWER: Kinda fesl paralyzed?
STOCKS: Yeah(?). Didn't know where o turm. And that was... That's the- that's a lost feslin' that I
hope nobody-Ya know, | know that(?) kids, ya know, daily go through it. All around the world. But

its . That to thrive on hate and anger, to not feel, to be a... an emotionless soldier. No questions
asked, you do as | say; you protect at all costs.

INTERVIEWER: It's hard for you to believe that now, isn'tit? Mot- well, maybe not believe it, but-
bt {(inaudible)
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STOCKS: (Qver Interviewer) To comprehend.
INTERWVIEWER: As you say, look back and go: Why did | do that? (inaudible)

STOCKS: And it was... Because in college, one'a the- one'a the reasons | got to where | drank so
much is at times, | would- Ya know, when | was drunk, | didn't care what peopte thought. Yhen |
wasn't drunk, | worried about everything. Ya know, had no self confidence. None. [ was always
worried about what peopla thought of me. Well(?), maybe it was the subconscious...

INTERVIEWER: It was your protection. You prote- you were protecting yourself.

STOCKS: And, ya know, that was ancther reason 1 didn’t. ya know, | didr't close to people; |

didn't believe what they said. | didn't trust anybody. But when | got- I'd get druril and I'd be at &, ya

know, I'd be at a party with people. I'd just go outside, ball up in a comer and cry. It was lilke, .. an
smotional, just that one flash, you know, where | could dump all my emations out there for a
second and not care what anybady thought. Ya know, some people freaked on that. Ya know, I'm-

I'm drunk, | walk outside and ball up in a ball, I'm rockin' and cryin’. And itd go away just about as
fast as it came around. I'd be ok for a while.

INTERVIEWER: Let me bring you-
STOCKS: Workin' out helps some. But... It was the whoele anger thing. And then it was...

INTERVIEWER: 8o vou went home and you got in a fight with your father and you blurtec this
ocut? And then you went to tell Jack.

STOCKS: No, | talked to my mother and my sister about it I found out later that apparently- See, 1
didn't know anything about this. My mother had apparently said that she had saw Jack and | in
bad togethsr at our house.

INTERWIEWER: 'm sorry-

STOCKS: In bed together at our house, (Interviewer: Oh, Yeah[?]) Jack and |, at my family's
house. Never knew anything about that. And she went and told my grandmothar on my morm's
side. And- ya know, my grandma says now that she never said anything bacause she was scared
that Jack was gonna hurt them. Well, | didn't know anything bout that. *fou asked me before if my-
if anybody thought that somethin' was wrong. 1think, ya ki, | got thinkin' about it. My mom did,
Because, ya know, | told you about my dance teacher. | got out. Ya know. She lives in the middle
of the town, five thousand people, my car's parked outside her apartment, peo ale talk, and it got
hack to her. And... She wanted to file statutory rape charges against her. 1 was mad(?). And ]
wouldn't go through with it. She thought that's what it was. That... that's what was changin’ me.
What had happened then, ya know. But she didn't have any idea.

STOCKS (Cont.): And you know, even now, | can go back and I've ever guastioned that meeting.
Because Jack knew her. Whether that was set up in the first place.

INTERWIEWER: Wow.

STOCKS: Because afterward, | found out, ya know, later on, that she was sleepin’ with quite a few

younger lacls,
INTERWVIEWER: Jack's boys? Other..

STOCKS: A few of 'em were Jack's,
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INTERVIEWER: Can we go to that part where you told your mother and your sister, and then- Did
you go to Jack right away™? '

STOCKS No. . I've talked about this so much(?). | dor't remember the exact date of when | toldl
them, versus when | told him, and then it happenin'. [ wanna say that what happenad happeanad
about & week. . aweek after | told Jack.

INTERVIEWER: What was Jack's reaction when you told him? What'd he say ta you?

STOCKS: | betrayed him. | was supposed to protect him. They wantad to take him away, . from
me. ..

INTERVIEWER: Did Jack-

8TOCKS: (Over Interviewer) The ane sentence that is stuck inmy mind is all{?) in those kids'
minds, and was always told to us. "I you have a problem, killit.” .| had created a problem. He
told me to solve that problem.

INTERWVIEWYER: And you knew what that meant.

STOCKS: It was an order(?). Just like. .. it had been all along. No questions asked. But, | mean,
that{7?) just- Ya know, | can look back now and | have to even question that., | An maan, it shows
me how much control he had, because | told my mom and sister. without even thinkin' about it |
mean it was a reflex action to('?) protect. L went to him and told him.

INTERVIEWER: You didn't wanna betray him.

STOCKS: | wanted it o end, but he was all | had. And | was caught between a rock and a hard
place. And Dwanted(?)...
INTERYVIEWER: 8o in essence, he told XE@u to kill your family.

STOCKS: He told me to kill the problem.

INTERVIEWER: That night, you had- You were with your grandrnother, right? With- with your
gran- grandrmother Dorothy, or-?

STOCKS: My grandmather Darothy, my Aunt Bonnie, my Uncle J.T. from California, and my
grandmaoth- grandfather that passed away last year. ' d brought a- | brought a carload'a siuff
home from college, | was still movin' home. .. | remermber comin’ home, tatkin' to Mom. Mom was
cookin'- cookin' supper for my dad; my dad was gone on the truck. Heather was geltin' ready for &
hasketball game. My mom had wrote me a note sayin that my grandmother wanted me fo go out
to eat with them. . T. had come in from California and wanted to see me. She wrote the note just
in case they had leff, went to the ball game before. Ya know, in case | missed them in between.
But | called({?) anyway, And | called over there. Went over there, we went out to eat, And... We
talked about problems I'd had at school. The trouble | got into. DWI... Dirivin' without a hehnet,
drivin' without a license, terroristic threatening. ...

INTERVIEWER: So yvou weren't feelin'- You came home that night and you felt drained from all
the talk? Were you angry? Did you .. 7 What was happening?

STOCKS: | can honestly say | dor't think there was... 1 wasn't really fealin' anything when 1 got
rome. | mean, we talked about that. Ya know, | was worried about that, But | remembar gettin’
home and sittin' or (PHONE RINGS) the couch. ... Flippin' on the TV, (BACKGROUND NOISE)
And flippin' through the channels. And that was (BACKGROUND NOISE).. like a wave. And('?)
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just, (BACKGROUND NOISE) the longer [ sat there, the angrier | got. 1 can't explain that.
(inaudible) There were times in college that | would get so angry that I'd black out. I'd do things,
r*ot remember; 'dwake up somewhere else. There were times | could be drivin' down the road
and black out. And I'd end up where | was supposed mqu And I'd stop and pull over an the side
of the road and | was{?) waitin'. You know. | was comin' outta Litlle Rock- | remember cormin’ outta
Little Rock and-~ and Arkadelphial™). ltwas kinda similar,

INTERVIEWER. Your parents came home, and Heather was still there? Or she came home”
STOCKS: Heather had come home first. .. T dor't know.
INTERMWIEWER: Do rermember picking up a gun’

STOCKS: The police repaort says | do. Police report says a lotta things. | can remernber bein' mad
on the c:c:aum. ... No. Bits and pigces. | remember bain’ an the living room floor, with the gun in my
mouth My sister came home. And when she walked through the door and she walked in the

kitcher, she turmed and looked at me. And she asked me what was wrong. | told her to leave. Told

hef to get out and leave. And she asked me again, she said, "What's- what's wrong?" | remember
goirn' pack in the livin' room, get down on my knees and stick the gur i my mouth. About that
fime, my mom came mrougl 1, and | seen my dad's face. Next thing | know, they're all dead.
(BACK GROUND NOIS SE) They're all layin' there. Just sesin' him. The years of the fightin'. The(?)
Jack sayin' how much my dad hated me, he didn't love me. It was- | know that he had told me to
kill the problem. But in that moment, it was... L wasn't drivin'-  wasn't drivin' the car. [ was in
charge whern it wracked, (Intferviswer: Mm- hrm barasn't drivin' whean{7)...

INTERVIEWVTR: And vou didn't mean for Heather to be killed in all this mess, obviously.

STOCKS: I'd rather I've killad mysell than murderin’ her (BACKGROUND NOISE) or anybady. |
know that's ha- ya know, that's hard for probably you to believe and a lotta people o believe.
But... They didn't deserve to die. My sister and my mom, even my dad, as many problems as we
hrad had, he didn't deserve what happenead.

INTERVIEWER: Was anybedy else in that house with you that night?

STOCKS: Mot that | can remermber, There wasn't anybady that | saw when | lef, | can tell you
that. (Interviewsr: So you're-) | know that there's somebody who has said that they were there at
the house when i happened: that Jack was... within a short distance away in a car. It was one's
the other boys. And he said that... Said they watched. And this same boy, after | was locked up,
my(7)- walked{?) us all to where they ended being(?). He was given a gun, told to kill his farmily.
And turned the gun on Jack, Made him go confess.

INTERWVIEWVVER: You're talking aboul Wade Knox, right?

STOCKS: Made him confess. It was..

INTERVIEWER: So you are- you are- As far as you know...

STOCKS: As far as | know, nobody else was there,

INTERVIEWYER you are the sole responsibility of these three murders.

STOCKS: That | know of Yes, ma'arm.

INTERWVIEWER: But you're not sure.

http://www.courttv.com/onair/shows/crimestories/q _z_episodes/scoutmaster stocks.htmi

7/6/02



CRIME STORIES Page 12 of 21

STOCKS: | don't remember everything, | can't be surg,

INTERVIEWER: One of the first people that came to visit vou was Jack, right? After you were
arrested?

STOCKES: Meah,
MTERWVIEY, TER: What did he say to you?

STOCKS: He said, "l was right; you.dor't have & cor mt: ience." As in getting and(?) he got what he
Wmawtwﬁ He got the goal that he wanted to achieve. .. He said that- Told me to keep quist, he was
gonna help me. He was gonna talk to- Ya know, his %a her was a judge. And the judge knew the
prosecutor very well. His dad knew the prosecutor very well. And the- the jIJiJC‘éB that was on the
ber K:h at the ttme | don't think | really thought that he was agonm da anything. ... It was- it was
welrd, | get arrested; the lawyer | ﬂ!cl\(@ is hest friends with Jaclk; the prr:;:;wr"mm is friends with
Jack's father. The policeman that had taken all the confessions was one'a my dad's hest friends,
(Interviewer: Hrm) ﬁmd it was. ..

INTERVIEWER: Everything was intertwined.

His)

STOCKS: They wanted to get me down here so I'd shut up. | got three life sentences, too.
INTERWIEWER: And you're not shuttin' up, though.

STOCKS: Mo, I'm not(?).

INTERVIEWER: What do you wanna see-

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) | wasn't going to- 1 dor't know-Ya know, 1 don't really know if §
would've- | would've ever said anything, to be honest. Because like | told voul a while ago(?), what
paople would think. | was too caught up in what people actually thought about me. And 1 don't
knuw that same time, | was an mmotmdi mess aﬂre.r hat, | mean, the(?) first week | was in county

ail, | think 1 lost twenty five pounds. Couldn't eat, couldn't sleep. Goin’ through detox for my
qlcoi al.

INTERWVIEWER: But even after you pled, you came in here, you still{?)-

STOCKS: | didr't say anything urtil the other boys gave their witness statements, and [ was
brought up numerous times.

INTERVIEWER: And you still felt a loyal@ to Jack, didn't you? Even then.

STOCKS: Ina way. It was- If | could explain it. If | could- I'd like to figure it all out myself [ wisti- |
wigh 1 eould Twish [ could figure out w ’h’zi he did. If | knew exactly what he did, | could reverse
whiat he did. Because | still have problems. But I'm doin’ a lot better. Me and the family workin' on

a lotta problems. And | don't(?) have near the anger prablems that I had. 1 had severe angear
problems.

INTERVIEWER: (brief comments;
(END OF TAPE 7)

(TONE)
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STOCKS: -police’s job. | was dumb to the law. Ya know, it was... | gave two statements sayin’ that
I'd blacked out. And | didn't remember shooting (Interviewar: Right) the third one. And which he
told me, he said, "Well, we didn’t really hear what was on the tape. | want to write anather ane,”
Ard he said, "Ya know that I'm about all you've got.” | mean, he said(?) the same thing when |
went to the- up there to the State Police Headguarters and did the lie detector test. And 1 don't
know why, but he asked me if | trust him and | said yes. He wrote a staternent, and | signed it.
Didr't ever dawn on me

STOCKS (Cont.): that he would doctor it up. (Interviewsr: How did he doctor it up) | rernember
shootin' people in the head and all kinds of things.

INTERWVIEWER: He changed it tatally.

STOCKS: Mm-hm. The third ore. | mean, it's not anything like the other ones. That was my dad's
best friend. Lotta people were angry over there(?). Lotta people wanted to see me- Wouldn't you
say(?) a lotta people would've like to see me died? Very much so. Then(?) posture(?), he pushes
the family, sayir', "Il give him three life sertences; he doesn't take that, I'm goin’ for the death
penalty.”

INTERVIEWER: Well, first you thought if you pled that you might-

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) Seven vears on life. That's what my lawyer was tellin’ me. Seven
years on life. He said, "You'll be better off, you take these life sentences. 'Cause if you got years,
you're gonna fall under 70%(7?) law." He said, "You'll be here(?) forever(?}." Seven years on life.
Well, that's twenty one years. Well... Better than nothin', Then | get down here, and there's paaple
with life with parole that's been here forty years. Ya know(?), there's no different, life with parole,
life without parcle. hi Addnsas, it's the same.

7

INTERVIEWER: So you feel like you got railreaded there?

STOCKS: Slightly. But, | mean, as people have told me down here, if you don't know your rights,
you have none. Which is very true. | mean, if I'd had... 'Course, if I'd had any- any commaon Sense
sayin'(?) at the time, | would've thought about Jack and everything from the very beginning. But
still. There's @ lotta things that... It's like the state hospital. When [ went to the state hospital, when
| started talkin' about abuse, (PHONE RINGS) they put down their pencils and pens; they didn't
wanna hear nothin' about that. Nothin'. Then a guard gets one'a- one'a these mental health
patients that's way out there. Guard fall asleep and he steals his keys. He goes and buries "em in
a flower pot. Abaut twenty feet away from him. And Fm laughin' about it. Ya know. They sent me
back to county jail, sayin' 1 was involved to try to escape.

INTERWVIEWER: Why do vou think that-
STOCKS: They wanted me to get down here and keep me shut up.
INTERVIEWER: Keep you shut up about Jack, as well?

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) Jack, everything. About the truth, what happened. Jack wanted me
dowr here,

INTERWIEWER: That's how Jack helped you.

STOCKS: Yeah(?). He helped rme out a lot. (PHONE RINGS} And it- 1, ya knowAnd 've- (PHOME
RINGS) | don't know if, ya know, I- 1 wrote this letter, in- in hopes that it would've been kept

private, but apparently, some other people got copies of my lefter that | wrote to Wade in the state
hospital. They wasr't meant to(7), but anyway ... | was tryin’ to help Wade. | wanted to help Wade.
I was startin' to realize: My God, what has this man done to us? And | knew that Wade was havin'
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for their life. That's why he got locked in the hospital. And Lwrote him a letter. And they(?) said the

letter helped. (BACKGROLIND N DISE) Because, ya know, | was- | was trying toYa know, | think

ona of the main points | brought up to him was. . It's not right to hurt peaple. This fake love that

Jack had us believin' in, it's not right. It's... [ didn't wanna see hirn down here with me. Ya know. |

mean. he had brought- He had- He brought the whole thing to an end. | didn't wanna see it

(inaudible) into him; either he Furt somebody or hurt hisself 'Cause it's really- it's really taken a toll

on Wade. | mean, that's his uncle.
W TERVIEMWER: Yeah, | Know.

STOCKS: Ya know(?), that makes it even worse. | mean, if- if his parents had died, it was, y&

know, Jack would'a probably got him and the ather- his brother and everything, and been God, ya

know, God parents or whatever. It was. .
INTERVIEWER: Did you get a response from Wade?

STOCKS: No. Talked with his parents. Not his- Well(?), | talked to- My grandmother talked ta
Warer, Charlia came down hera 10 see me. (Interviewer. €-hrm) His father. Al They- they

appreciated it, they said thank you. They said they thought it helped a lot

INTERVIEWER: Let me ask you about the victim impact hearing. Were you there when others
also got up? Or did you just came in and leave?

STOCKS: Miss Dickey, I'm glad thet she did that. She- she had got it to where | could be there for

the whole time. Now, the second time, when he got resentenced, none of us where there that |
know of, YWeare any of the victims-? None'a the vigtims were thera,

INTERVIEWER: So you heard other boys' stories.
STOCKS: [was almost- (MIC NOISE?) Was | last?
WOICE: | hink sa.

STOCKS: Lwanna say | was last.

INTERVIEWER: When you heard these other boys' storias...

STOCKS: Almost exactly (PHOME RINGS) the same as mine. Not as bad, in some situations; it
didn't last @3 long in some situations, but... Lot of 'em were the same. Me and Wade. .. Hearin' the

Augus(sp?) boy's parents talk about what was happenin’ &t home and the problems they were

havir' with him, and | was goin”: My God, the same thing that was goin' on with my parents, and 1

couldnt('?), you know- | didn't even see it ltwas.. It was a rude awakerin'.. It really was. Y&

krow. (Interviewer Yeah) But at the same time it was- 1 hate to use the word cormforting. it was- |

was gonna say it was comforting o know that there was people who actually understood what |

went through. But it wasn't comforting, it was... | hated it that other people knew exactly what | was

goin' through. But, ya know, that [wasn't alone.

INTERVIEWER: No, ‘cause they were all going through their own little- their own personal hell, as
el

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) Own problems. Andl...

INTERVIEVVER: How do you- Vvhat- Jack's in | ail He's in prison.
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STOCKS: Mm. He's gonna get out, moren likely.

INTERWIEWER: ou think so.

STOCKS: Mm.

INTERWVIEWER: Wvhy?

STOCKS: Maney and politics. What makes the world go round.

INTERVIEWER: Doesn't he have life sentences?

STOCKS: (BACKGROUND NOISE) Ha used to have four plus eighty, now he's got it down o one
plus forty. Now he's appealed again, and I truly helisve that he'll get it overtumed. Because the
same thing he got overturned the first fime, Hanshaw('?} didn't step down. So he gave him
(inaudible) again, which was- | didn't agree. 'Cause he can get (inaudible) tarm of years. And if he
can find somethin' else to appeal, he can appeal and appeal and appeal, until he either runs out of
what- What is it7 Ya have to- Every time that you appeal, you have to bring up new...

INTERVIEWER: New evidence?

STOCKS: Mew evidence to voice why you should have a reversal,

INTERVIEWER: Right.
STOCKS: Well, as long as he keeps comin' up the evidence, and(7) sayirt, "I've been dong

wrong-" He's got plenty'a money. Daddy's got plenty’a money.

INTERWYIEWER: Dadcy's not gonna live forever. Daddy's in his sighties.

STOCKS: True, but when Daddy passes away, who do you think the money's gonna go o’
(Interviewer: Mm-hrm) Fund to help little(?) son. | mean, he knew. The old man know the whole
tirne.

IMTERVIEWER: You think so. You say that-

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) Jack got kicked outta the scouts by the Boy Scouts, because of the
allegations of Cledis (PHONE RINGE} and Dou- Doug Hogan. (Interviewer: Mrm-hm) Everybody
kresw about that, His father knew,

INTERVIEWER: His wife?

STOCKS: Most definitely. When- (MIC NOISE?) When Wade forced- Well, it was at gunpoint,
but . He made Jack confess. Well, Jack's wife made the comment after he had confassed, "

thought you told me you weren't gonna do this anymore.” ..

INTERVIEWER: It's unbelievable, isn't it, that people could not say anything, could not... 1 you

could say one thing to Jack Walls, what would, if you had a chance, if he were sitting across from

you, what would you say to him? Have you thought about that in your mind? (PHONE RINGS)
STOCKS: (inaudible) anything to say.

INTERVIEWER: What would you da?
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STOCKS: Hm. | don't know. If | hurt him- 1f Thurt him, | would be doin’ everything he everything
he wanted me to ever do. If | didn't do anything, it's kinda like I'm protectin’ him. 8o I'm-I'm-'m
hurt either way. | don't know. You(?) should ask, I'd probably say, "Why?" Of course, you fertv,
P've now(?) heard him say that he liked the outdoorsy types. That was his excuse. "} ik the
outdoorsy types.”

INTERVIEWER: Makes you sick, all this, doesn't it, now, when you think about it? You close your
eyes {Inaudible, Stocks over)

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) l've gotta wake up here every day and realize what happened. I'm
existin’, I'm not livin' anymore. | sit here in prison. Everything else goes around me. Goes on.
People grow up, people- their lives change. Wothin' changes hers, | sit here in @ two man cell and
see my family once a week, make phone calls. write letters to people. But this is.. | know this is-
ry family wouldn't agree to this; | know they wouldn't. And... But it's very true. I if they ever told
me that | had to spend the rest'a my life here, | think I'dl rather tham go ahead and put me away.
Becauss... (PHONE RINGS) To live in this place, and to see the way people are, | mean... | try not
to- It's very hard for me not to judgmental a hout homosexual pu- people, because of what
happenad to me.- (Interviewer: Mm-hm} Down here, Pve got into the practice: Don't tell me your-
dart't tell me about it. Don't talk to me about it; don't bring that stuff up arnund me: 1 don't wanna
hear it. (BACKGROUND NOISE) But at the same time, you see that everywhere. It's peopla down
here. And you see paople... You'll see a wealker person get overcome by & strang person and be
used sexually. It's just like a, ya know, let's pack up in time and look at this.

INTERVIEWER: It's you when you were younger, (Stocks: Right) in & way.

STOCKS: | mean, it was- it's like seein' it all over again. | can't- That's- that's emotionally just
wrecking. Ya know, to see that day in, day out, day in and day out. 've talked to Cheryl about this.
Ya know, if- if | was gonna have to spend my life somewhere- | mean, | said that about them
putti' me down, but if | was gonna have to spend my life somewhere, I'd rather be i somewhers
like & mental institution. | really would. I'd rather be locksd up in a room than to be in this
ervirenment. I'm not by nature a violent person at all. | dan't want- | dor't wanna hurt people. |
dor't wanna be violent at all. I'm in an environment that is violent twenty four hours a day.
Everything | don't wanna be. At least there, | could receive some kind of help. (inaudible,
Interviswer over)

INTERVIEWER: {over Stocks) Are you getiing therapy here of any Kind?

STOCKS The man doesn't work here any more. | thirnk they just - they just let him go. The head
psychologist here, or the guy that was doin' psychology work here, is the same psychologist that
went and testified on Jack's behalf that child abuse had- what?, thirty day- a thirty day effect on
children, usually? It's beyond(?) thirty days, child abuse. Whatever it was,

INTERVIEWER: How can they justify giving you that therapist? |s that the only therapist heare,
or .7 I mean, did you sit acress from him and talk to hir?

STOCKS: Once or twice. He told me if | needed, ya know- | neaded some drugs, he'd put me on
some drugs. That's a- It's a joke, if's a cruel joke.

INTERWVIEWER: Have you tried to get other counseling? Really, ya know., ..

STOCKS: One other ime. Two ti- after two times, | gave up. fjust started tryin' to face the
problems, working with rmy family. do it that way. The second time. | was in & cell with a- a friend.
And | talked to one of the counselars here. And... My call mate had talked to the counselor. And |
went up there and | was talkin' about all this stuff with Jack, and L. My anger had kinda flashed
when | was talkin® about it, va know, how these hom osexuals was gettin' to me and, ya Know,
(inaudible:) | don't- 1 don't have & lotta problems. 'm not goin' to, But anyway, ha didn't meake any
kind of very- he was real quist when he talkad to him. He was talkin’ about his oid mediation,
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talkin' about gettin' back on his old medication. He talks to me, and he puts my cell mate on anger
medicine to control his anger. Tallks 1o me, and puts my cell mate on some medicing. So after that,
I said no. I'm better offbetter off without it.

INTERVIEVER: (over Stocks) Thera's nothing you can do to-

STOCKS: They're supposed to be hirin' somebody new. Il probably go and check him out, but |
daubt that it will be much better, | mean, I'm in prison.

INTERWIEWER: How- Well-

BTOOKS: They...

INTERVIEWER: You'e in prison. This - as you said, And you're here. And this is your life now.
STOCKS: Tough life.

INTERVIEWER: How are you gonna come to terms with if, that you've gotta make a life here? Do
you think you can do- you'll be able to do that?

STOCKS: No. That's givin' up, to me.
INTERVIEWER: Well, not so much giving up that- of the hope(?)- In terms of what(?)?

STOCKS: 1 would have to- Ta me, that is- To accept this as life is to take on the morals and the
values and the mindset of the paople here. | can't do that. | have no sewual attraction for another
Man.

INTERVIEVWER: Ok, well, that's what- I'm not- [ wasn't-
STOCKS: That- {Interviewer: | wasn't-) That, and everything else.

INTERVIEWER: Ok, but you're saying that {Stocks: I'm not a-) that's the whole package; that if
you accept the way of life here-

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) Well, mainly. | mean, this is a- that's- (Interviewer: That's what you
gotta do} | wauld- 1 would- | wouldn't{ 7} know- | wouldn't- | don't think I'd be exaggeratin' ta say
that 70% of the population's homosexual. {Interviewer: Mm-hm) | don't think I'd be exaggeratin’ to
say that.

INTERVIEWER: You- You told me about your anger. Jack's in- in prisan; you think he's gonna get
out, You have got to have this inside of you: That son of & bitch. | mean, you know- fou say 1o
yourself, "Me's gonna get out. He's gonna he walkin' the streets.” Is Jack Walls totally responsible,
in your eyes, for making you pick up that gun and kill your family?

STOCKS: 1 would have to- To me, that is- To accept this as life is to taka on the morals and the
values and the mindset of the people here. | can't do that, | have no sexual attraction for another
mar.

INTEEWIEWER: Ok, well, that's what- I'm not- | wasn't-
STOCKS: That- (Interviewer: | wasn't-) That, and everything else.

INTERVIEWER: Ok, but you're saying that {Stocks: I'm not a-) that's the whole package; that if
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you accept the way of life here-

STOCKS: (Qver Interviewer) Well, mainly. | mean, this is a- that's- (Interviewer: That's wiat you
gotta do) | would- T would- 1 wouldrt{?) know- T wouldn't- 1 don't think 'd be exaggeratin to say
that 70% of the population's homosexual. { Interviewer Mrm-hm) | don't think I'd be exaggeratin' to
say that.

INTERVIEWER: You- You told me about your anger. Jack's in- in prison; you think he's gonna get
out, You have got ta have this inside of you: That son of a bitch. | mean, you know- You say to
yourself, "He's gonna get out. Me's gonna be wailkin’ the streets. |s Jack Walls totally responsible,
in your eyes, for making you pick up that gun and kill your family?

STOCKS: | ar't blame Jack for me pullin' the trigger. | can say that he was the cause of my
mindset when it happened. The way he.. problems | had at the current time. 1 can say that he was
the major cause of those problems. But, I mean, | take responsibility for what happened. And |
realize that it was wrong. If 1 could take it back, | would. Give my life for 'em any day'a the ek
(inaudiple) But | can't. That's reality. And... But... To be honest, | think if- if everybody knew he
truth about Jack and everything, | don't think T would'a had the life sentences and been stuck in
prison, | really don't, (Interviewer. Mm-hrn) Yes, it was wrong. And | deserve to be punished for
that. | realize that. | punish myself every day. This- this prison can't punish me. Nobody can be a-
a worse judge than somebocdy's self. Who's gonna judge you harder? You judge yourself every
time you look in the mirror. You know what's wrang with you, you know what you don't like. ..
But...

INTERVIEWER: But the anger for Jack, is it still there? Orig ... 7

STOCKS: I'm tryin' to move on. | really am. Do | despise that man for what he did? Yes.

(AIRPLANE OVERHEAD).. My fear would be, if he got out, would be that he'd hurt more kids, If

he can do it once - and he did it for, what?, thirty years? Twenty eight years? Before anything ever
%.

happened. That means he had a lotta friands. . It's- If he gets back out, he'll do it again, | have no

doubt,
INTERVIEWER: Well we talked to two people yesterday who said what you said: He's gonna get

back out; but if he gets back, I'm gonna kil hir. | that talk, or do you think he would tast a day on
the streets?

STOCKS: Hm. .. | think if somebody does kill him, that would be somebody that didn't step
(PHOME RINGS) forward. A victim that never stepped forward. That has fi nallyall this - hirm
appealin’, and then see him work his way hack aut through the system, if he got back out, the
people that didn't step forward, | think that would really get to 'cm. 'Cause, ya know, they're- they
were probably breathin’ a- a sigh of refief. It's over with. Y¥a know-. {Interviewer. @-him} At least
somebody stepped forward. | may not have been able to, but somebody did. Ya ko 7).
Someabody had the courage 10 step forward and end it. If he gets back out, it's gonna stir up a vt
of  Thatd drive Wade crazy. That'd drive a lotta those boys crazy. {(Interviewer: Well, they'd be
afraid-) ‘Cause the first thought that'd go their mind is; Ha's gonna get out and he's gonna firgd us
and kill us. | mean, ya know(?), he had kids hunting down other kids. Wade's seared (o death of
Frirr.

INTERVIEWER: When you did the victim impact, was that the first time publicly you said what
Jack had done to you?

STOCKS: Oh. (CLEARS THROAT)... Did l do & interview hefore that? Or was everything(?) after?
Vtalked to Arkansas Times, but [ didn't go into detail about-

VOHCE: You had talked to your attomay.
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STOCKS: Oh, wall, that, but...
INTERVIEWER: S0 you-

STOCKS: (Over Interviewer) And the preacher, but ya know, nong'a that matters, nothin'(?) was

said,

INTERVIEWER: So vou had never said anything up until that point.

STOCKS: Mo, no. And the Arkansas Times, 1 didnt resally- | didn't go into-

IMTERVIEWER: {over Stocks) Yers you- $O yOU Wals still protecting him.

STOCKS At @ certain- When | started dain'- When [ did the Arkansas Times, they had put- YWhen
this had all come out, they put & gag order on it, (Interviewer: Hmy and | wasn't supposed 10 get
into details about everything. So... itwas... The Arkansas Times was more or lese kinda skimmin'
around the edges. it didn't hit the heart of everything, but it got some'a the details, talked to
some's the people that knew me. But..

STOCKS (Cont.): But | mean, when | could talk, | decided to talk, Ya know. When | did- When |
did & lotta those interviews, ya know, especially after hearin' those guys talked, | hopead that-

(inaudible; Interviewer: Hrr) Twenty/Twenty wasn't... | dor't wanna say anything bad about orm.

INTERVIEWER: That's ok, (THEY LAUGH) Alright, we got & wrap it up. Can | ask ong more
guestion here? Is there anything else you wanna say, after all we've talked about? Anything.
STOCKS: That'd be hard to say. If.. | would say that if there's kidds out there and they are hidin' a
secret orl?) they're bein' abused, | don't care what thay're sayin' to ‘em, whether they're sayin' il's
ave, whether they're sayin'- whatever. Don't let it go on. Stand up, do samethin' about it "Cause |
regret it everyday, that | didn't. | really do. And... Ya know, | dor't know how much- | don't know
who all will see this, or who all, ya know-who all will care, but I'rn sarry. Treally am. | can honestly
say that nobody suffered through this more than | have. Mobady's lost more than | have.

STOCKS: Always is. Every day is, but..,
INTERVIEWER: {(inaudible)

STOCKS: They can(?) clean up my fingers (inaudible)
INTERWVIEWER: Hm?

(inaudible voices)

STOCKS: Terrible, | know.

FNTERVIEWER: (LAUGHS)

STOCKS: | had to use that(?), so they clean it up(?). I need to quit, but{?- {Interviewar: Yeah) |
never smoked a cigarette il | got locked up.

INTERVIEWER: Yeah, really? Never. Experience(?} that'll{?) kil ya. But hopafully, somethin’
good'll happen. 'm hopin' Il be able to get out in the next ten or fifteen years, It's bad. It's bad,
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when you look forward to losin’ ten or fifteen years'a your life, just to start over.
INTERWVIEVVER: Right.
STOCKS: Is... it's tough.
INTERVIEVWER: You think that would happen?
STOCKS: Possibly. Chance. Chance of it.
INTERVIEWER: (inaudible)
STOCKS: Thank you very rauch. Ya know what{ 7?17 | think-
VOICE: Dorothy give you(?) that letier?
STOCKS: Huh?
VOICE: Dorathy gave me(?) that letter. That you gave me & dirty look about. The Wade fetter
STOCKS: Oh, ok Yeah, | figured Grandma clid gornethin’ like that.
VOICE: (over Stocks; inaudible) | thought it would help your petitions,
STOCKS: Oh, well-well, Ok,
VOICE: (over Stocks; inaudible)
STOCKS: But, ya know.

INT ':R\ﬂ':WEP Let me just ask & quick guestion here. "‘fr:au guys go on talkin' now. 1s there a
passibility, s he walks, (i naudible) we could walk with him®

VOICE: {inaudible)
STOCKS: 1 know. That happens when you don't sleep for two of three days at a fime
INTEFVIEWER: No, no, just in the halhvey here.
VOICE: Yeah. - 1 et yva go out and show ya (inaudible)
INTERVIEWER: Ok. That'd be great.
STOCKS: Well, at least | started workin’ out again; i that took a lotta stress
INTERVIEWER: Wea just have to get (inaudible)
STOCKS: | quilt for about three weeks.
INTERVIEVVER: Um..

STOCKS: (inaudible)
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(brief comments of crew; END OF TAPE &)

(TONE)

STOCKS: -tried to help him. (LAUGHTER) Some- some of 'em worried me. Worried me.
VOICE: Some of 'em werern't(?) right.
STOCKS: No. but | met- 1 met this girl out there on a wigit from Texas.
VOICE: Oh, God.

STOCKS: I'm gonna visit ya'li(?).
VOICE: Oh, really,

STOCKS: She's drivin' down- she's drivin’ down here from Corpus Christi next week, s0...
(inaudible) t's been cver & year.

VOICE: Ya know, if's real safe to date someone that's got ife without parale.

STOCKS: Don't be a smart alec.

VOICE: Corpus Christ's a nice town.

(inaudibie voices)

STOCKS: Am | just gonna go up, go and come back? Are you all tellin'(?) me come o in{?)7?

VOICE: {over Stocks) 'm gonna- I'm gonna- YWhat I'm gonna do is {inaudible) comer shot(?)
(inaudinle) sit in the comer and you walk that way and around (inaudible)

INTERVIEWER: Ok, Let me just say goodbys to you, 'cause I'm not gonna go with the crew.
(imaudible voices)

VOICE: Ok, Pm gonna send him out. -

WOICE: Ok,

(inaudible voices)

(Tape continues with another intenigw}
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